
 

 

ZONING AGENDA ITEM #1 
 

 

MEETING DATE:  December 23, 2024 
 
AGENT: Chad Dixon, licensed land surveyor, on behalf of Brian Stittle, member of 

Poole Ranch Developer, L.L.C. 
 
SUBJECT: Application for Zoning Map Amendment for property described as All of 

Government Lot 1, Part of the Northeast Quarter of the Northwest 
Quarter, Part of Government Lot 2, Part of the Southeast Quarter of the 
Northwest Quarter and Part of the Northwest Quarter of the Northeast 
Quarter of Section Nineteen (19), Township Twelve (12) North, Range 
Fourteen (14) West of the Sixth Principal Meridian, Buffalo County, 
Nebraska, to rezone approximately 73.26 Acres, more or less, from 
Agriculture (AG) to Agricultural – Residential (AGR).  

 
Discussion: 
Per Zoning Regulations, Section 11.3, the Board of Commissioners must review any zoning 
amendments, after recommendation of the Planning & Zoning Commission. The applicant is 
seeking to rezone approximately 73.26 acres from Agriculture (AG) to Agricultural – Residential 
(AGR). 
 
This property is located east of Keystone Road and south of 340th Road, where previously 
vacated under Resolution 2018-62.  Parcel ID: 060161100. 
 
Considerations:  
 

a. That such change in zoning designation would have minimal adverse effect on 
surrounding properties. 

b. That the intended use of the Agricultural – Residential (AGR). District is consistent 
with property use in the surrounding area. 

c. This amendment is consistent with the growth and development of Buffalo County 
and the overall Comprehensive Plan adopted by Buffalo County, Nebraska, and 

d. The subject property is situated close to already existing public improvements, such 
as sufficient utilities so that the map amendment with its attendant changes in uses 
will not cause additional public costs to function effectively. 

 

 

BUFFALO COUNTY ZONING & FLOODPLAIN 
Buffalo County Courthouse 
1512 Central Avenue 
PO Box 1270 
Kearney, NE  68848 
Phone: (308) 236-1998 
Fax: (308) 236-1870 
Email: zoning@buffalocounty.ne.gov 



At the November 21, 2024 Buffalo County Planning Commission Meeting, a motion was made 
by Keep and seconded by Jeffs to recommend forwarding the Application for Zoning Map 
Amendment favorably, on an 5-2 vote, with no abstentions and one absence based on the 
following findings, the zoning map amendment: abuts a paved road, is within close proximity of 
the city of Ravenna, has immediate availability of utilities, and supplements a need for housing. 
 
Voting yes: Sedlacek, Jeffs, Keep, Wolfe, & Stubblefield. 
Voting no: Schmidt & Brady.   
Abstain: None. 
Absent: Vacek. 
 
No opposition was received for this application. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



ZONING AGENDA ITEM #2 
 

 

MEETING DATE:  December 23, 2024 

AGENT: Chad Dixon, licensed land surveyor, on behalf of Brian Stittle, member of 
Poole Ranch Developer, L.L.C. 

SUBJECT: Application for Preliminary Subdivision, “Riverview Estates 
Subdivision”, now known as “Poole Ranch Subdivision”, for property 
described as All of Government Lot 1, Part of the Northeast Quarter of the 
Northwest Quarter, Part of Government Lot 2, Part of the Southeast 
Quarter of the Northwest Quarter and Part of the Northwest Quarter of the 
Northeast Quarter of Section Nineteen (19), Township Twelve (12) North, 
Range Fourteen (14) West of the Sixth Principal Meridian, Buffalo 
County, Nebraska. 

 
Discussion: 
 
Per Subdivision Regulations, Section 3.09 (A-C), the Board, after notice and public hearing, 
shall approve the preliminary plat, disapprove the preliminary plat, or approve with conditions, 
to satisfy Buffalo County Subdivision Regulations. 
 
At the November 21, 2024 Buffalo County Planning Commission Meeting, a motion was made 
by Jeffs and seconded by Wolfe to recommend forwarding the Application for Preliminary 
Subdivision, favorably, on an 7-0 vote, with no abstentions and one absence, together with the 
following conditions: safe entry point for the subdivision residents and the travelling public, 
which is established by the Buffalo County Highway Superintendent, a 10-year road 
maintenance agreement, and a safety study in consideration given to road design. 
 
Voting yes: Sedlacek, Jeffs, Keep, Wolfe, Stubblefield, Schmidt, & Brady. 
Voting no: None.   
Abstain: None. 
Absent: Vacek. 
 
No opposition was received for this application. 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 



ZONING AGENDA ITEM #3 
 

 

MEETING DATE:  December 23, 2024 

AGENT: Craig Bennett, of Miller & Associates Consulting Engineers, P.C., on 
behalf of Mark H. Meyer and C. Jayne Meyer, also known as Claudia 
Jayne Meyer, and Loren Bakko, Manager of Bakko Land, L.L.C. 

SUBJECT: Application for Zoning Map Amendment for property described as part of 
the West Half of the Northwest Quarter of Section Eight (8), Township 
Nine (9) North, Range Sixteen (16) West of the Sixth Principal Meridian, 
Buffalo County, Nebraska, to rezone approximately 30.13 Acres, more or 
less, from Agricultural – Residential (AGR) to Commercial (C).  

Discussion: 
 
Per Zoning Regulations, Section 11.3, the Board of Commissioners must review any zoning 
amendments, after recommendation of the Planning & Zoning Commission. The applicant is 
seeking to rezone approximately 30.13 acres from Agricultural – Residential (AGR) to 
Commercial (C). 
 
This property is located east of Cottonmill Avenue, south of W. 100th Street.  Parcel ID: 
560388020. 
 
Considerations:  
 

a. That such change in zoning designation would have minimal adverse effect on 
surrounding properties. 

b. That the intended use of the Commercial (C) District is consistent with property use 
in the surrounding area. 

c. This amendment is consistent with the growth and development of Buffalo County 
and the overall Comprehensive Plan adopted by Buffalo County, Nebraska, and 

d. The subject property is situated close to already existing public improvements, such 
as sufficient utilities so that the map amendment with its attendant changes in uses 
will not cause additional public costs to function effectively. 

 
At the November 21, 2024 Buffalo County Planning Commission Meeting, a motion was made 
by Schmidt and seconded by Jeffs to recommend forwarding the Application for Zoning Map 
Amendment favorably, on an 6-1 vote, with no abstentions and one absence, together with the 
following condition: any structure shall have a minimum setback of 90 feet from the center of 
Cottonmill Avenue and the center of 100th Street. 
 
Voting yes: Sedlacek, Schmidt, Jeffs, Keep, Wolfe, & Stubblefield. 
Voting no: Brady.   
Abstain: None. 
Absent: Vacek. 
 
No opposition was received for this application. 



Planning  
& 

Zoning 
Commission 

Minutes 

November 21, 2024 



 

1 
 

MINUTES OF PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION 
NOVEMBER 21, 2024 

BUFFALO COUNTY COURTHOUSE  
7:00 P.M. 

 
Notice of the meeting was given in advance thereof by publication in the Kearney Hub, the 
designated method for giving notice, on November 7, 2024. A copy of the proof of publication is 
on file in the Zoning Administrator’s Office. Advance notice of the meeting was also given to 
the Planning and Zoning Commission and availability of the Agenda was communicated in the 
advance notice. The Agenda is available for anyone wanting a copy. 
 
Chairperson Scott Brady opened the meeting at 7:00 P.M. on November 21, 2024.  He 
announced that Francis “Buss” Biehl has resigned from his position on The Planning 
Commission and on November 12, 2024, Jeremy Sedlacek was appointed in his place. 
 
In Attendance: Kurt Schmidt, Willie Keep, Loye Wolfe, Tammy Jeffs, Scott Stubblefield, 
Jeremy Sedlacek and Scott Brady. 
 
Absent was Marc Vacek. 
 
Quorum has been met. 
 
Also attending were: Deputy County Attorney Josiah Davis, Deputy County Attorney Andrew 
Hoffmeister, and Zoning Administrator Dennise Daniels. There were several members of the 
public present. 
 
Chairperson Brady announced The Open Meetings Act and amended agendas were available if 
anyone wished to have one. 
 
The public forum was opened at 7:02 P.M. No one spoke. The public forum closed at 7:03 P.M.  
 
Chairperson Brady announced the procedure and etiquette for the upcoming public hearings. 
 
Public Hearing. 5(a) 
 
Chairperson Brady opened the public hearing for Agenda Item 5(a) at 7:04 P.M. regarding an 
Application for Zoning Map Amendment, filed by Chad Dixon, licensed land surveyor, on behalf 
of Brian Stittle, member of Poole Ranch Developer, L.L.C., for property described as All of 
Government Lot 1, Part of the Northeast Quarter of the Northwest Quarter, Part of Government 
Lot 2, Part of the Southeast Quarter of the Northwest Quarter and Part of the Northwest Quarter 
of the Northeast Quarter of Section Nineteen (19), Township Twelve (12) North, Range Fourteen 
(14) West of the Sixth Principal Meridian, Buffalo County, Nebraska, to rezone approximately 
73.26 Acres, more or less, from Agriculture (AG) to Agricultural – Residential (AGR). 

Chad Dixon, of Miller and Associates, Consulting Engineers, P.C., located at 1111 Central 
Avenue, Kearney, Nebraska, stepped forward to present the application. Mr. Dixon stated that 



 

2 
 

the proposed zoning map amendment was in conjunction with Zoning Agenda Item #2. He stated 
that the applicant intends to rezone approximately 73 acres into a 17-lot subdivision. 

Deputy County Attorney Hoffmeister reviewed the Agricultural – Residential (AGR) Intent. He 
asked which school district this particular subdivision would be located and Mr. Dixon explained 
it would be located within the Ravenna School District and would benefit their community. Mr. 
Dixon added that the proposed subdivision will be situated on a hard-surfaced road and within 
close proximity of the city of Ravenna. 

Deputy County Attorney Hoffmeister asked Mr. Dixon how close the proposed subdivision is to 
the extra territorial jurisdiction of Ravenna and Zoning Administrator Daniels stated it was 
approximately half of a mile.  

Mr. Schmidt asked Mr. Dixon if Keystone Road was minimum maintenance after the 340th 
Road/Keystone Road curvature and Mr. Dixon confirmed that it was not minimum maintenance 
until Thomas Hongsermeier’s driveway. Deputy County Attorney Hoffmeister confirmed. 

Chairperson Brady asked if there were plans to have the easterly roads paved and Mr. Dixon 
responded there was not. Deputy County Attorney Hoffmeister stated that the roads would need 
to meet minimum road specifications and the developer would need to enter in a Road 
Maintenance Agreement.  

Secretary Wolfe inquired how many residences were located within that quarter section and Mr. 
Dixon responded that there was one.  

Deputy County Attorney Hoffmeister asked Zoning Administrator Daniels how many 
Agricultural – Residential (AGR) Districts were located within a certain parameter of this 
particular subdivision. Those were reviewed by The Commission. 

Secretary Wolfe asked if the interior roads would be gravel and Mr. Dixon confirmed they 
would. 

Chairperson Brady inquired if the developer had discussed the Keystone/340th Road curvature 
with the Buffalo County Sheriff’s Office or the Highway Department how to mitigate the 
dangerous intersection. Mr. Dixon stated that they had not, at this time, because they are in 
preliminary stages. Once the preliminary plat is approved, he continued, road design will be 
reviewed further. Chairperson Brady stated that he had safety concerns for that access.  

Mr. Dixon thanked The Commission for their time. 

Mr. William DeLaet, of 28800 Buckeye Road, Ravenna, Nebraska, stepped forward to speak in 
opposition of the project. Mr. DeLaet stated that he owns land directly to the north of the 
proposed subdivision and rezoning. He voiced concerns about the safety of the curve along 
Keystone Road, merging into 340th Road, and the number of accidents that occur. He also 
explained that he is concerned about maintaining his pasture land next to a large development, 
including spraying. He stated that he does not want any residences out there.  

Mr. DeLaet thanked the Commission for their time.  



 

3 
 

Mr. Gary Urwiller of 2705 72nd Avenue. Kearney, Nebraska, stepped forward to speak in 
opposition of the project. He stated that he and his wife own the half section in Section 24, 
Township 12 North, Range 15 West of the 6th P.M., Buffalo County, Nebraska, as Cherry Creek 
Farms, L.L.C. He explained that family members also own property to the north of 340th Road. 
He testified that he has concerns regarding moving farm equipment along Keystone Road and 
340th Road with an increase in traffic.  

He added that he has concerns regarding spraying on his land because drift can flow to sensitive 
areas, such as residences with trees, flowers, and gardens. He believes that it is going to create 
difficulty for him to maintain and spray his fields with westerly winds. 

Mr. Urwiller thanked the Commission for their time.  

Mr. Mark Standage and Mr. Ethan Standage, of 37995 295th Road, Ravenna, Nebraska, stepped 
forward to testify on the project. Mr. Mark Standage also expressed concern regarding the 
amount of vehicle accidents, the lack of lighting, and lack of signage at the curve along 340th 
Road and Keystone Road.  

Mr. Mark Standage testified that he is not against development, but does not want the 
subdivision located in that particular area. He added that Ravenna is difficult to build around 
because of the railroad crossings, lagoons, river, creek, family ownerships, school land 
ownerships, etc.  

He added that he does not want to have 17 residences next to land, that he rents from William 
DeLaet, for cattle grazing, directly to the north of the subdivision. He said that fireworks, dogs, 
and other residential disturbances can affect his livelihood.  

Mr. Ethan Standage added that there are lots for sale in a subdivision in Ravenna’s city limits, 
which are not selling. 

Chairperson Brady asked if either of the gentlemen had an idea of a good alternative for the road 
system for this development and Mr. Mark Standage explained that it would require a lot of dirt 
work. 

Mr. Ethan Standage added that, with livestock and residential development clashing, there are 
always complaints such as flies, cattle getting out, etc.  

Mr. Mark Standage and Mr. Ethan Standage thanked The Commission for their time. 

Ms. Sarah Ripp, of 27250 Keystone Road Ravenna, Nebraska, stepped forward to speak in 
opposition of the project. She testified that she has environmental concerns. She testified that the 
area of proposed development is extremely sandy and the grassland and animals that are there 
now, have taken many years to adapt for survival. She testified that the grasslands can store up to 
one third of the terrestrial soil organic carbon pool. She added that one acre of grassland can 
absorb up to 1 ton of carbon in its roots in a single year.  

She added that, aside from enjoying the prairie view, the grasslands also improve water filtration 
and reduce water runoff, which affect drinking water and pivot irrigation. 



 

4 
 

She testified that removing the native vegetation, which has tremendously deep roots and keep 
the sandy soil together, would be detrimental and the sandy soil will blow. 

She, also, reviewed several endangered species that could be affected by the development.  

She closed out her testimony by explaining that the development would also cause the loss of 
grazable acres for local ranchers. 

Deputy County Attorney Hoffmeister inquired where Ms. Ripp resides in comparison to the 
proposed development and Ms. Ripp responded that she lives south and her brother rents land 
from Mr. DeLaet. 

Chairperson Brady asked Ms. Ripp how she feels about development occurring along pivot 
corners and Ms. Ripp responded that she disagrees with developments in Buffalo County, but the 
proposed development affects her directly. 

Ms. Ripp thanked The Commission for their time.  

Mr. Brian Stittle, of 47687 776th Road, Ravenna, Nebraska, stepped forward to speak in favor of 
the project. He explained that he is one of the members of the development team on the proposed 
project.  

Deputy County Attorney Hoffmeister inquired where Mr. Stittle resides in comparison to the 
proposed development and Mr. Stittle responded that he resides in Sherman County, but he was 
raised in Ravenna. He explained that he doesn’t foresee a lot of issues with the development 
because it is his hope that the individuals that purchase the land will be from Nebraska and are 
familiar with farm life.  

Deputy County Attorney Hoffmeister asked Mr. Stittle if the development fulfils a public need 
by developing the proposed tract of land, and Mr. Stittle answered that there are individuals who 
would prefer to the country views, but want to reside within a certain parameter of the city. 

Deputy County Attorney Hoffmeister asked Mr. Stittle if he believed the development would 
cause an increase and traffic and Mr. Stittle responded that there will be a traffic increase. He 
acknowledged that the curve along Keystone Road is a dangerous intersection, but individuals 
should be aware of traffic laws and attentive to driving. Mr. Stittle added that he works on the 
fire department and is aware of the issues of the intersection. He added that, perhaps, it could be 
mitigated by adding more lighting. 

Discussion occurred regarding lack of ability to acquire land around the city of Ravenna, along 
paved roads. 

Chairperson Brady inquired the reason why this particular tract was selected and Mr. Stittle 
responded that it was available. 

Chairperson Brady asked what the developer intended to do to mitigate any ecological concerns 
that were brought forth and Mr. Stittle responded that dirt work would be occurring, but they 
would be laying grass seed for mitigation. 



 

5 
 

Mr. Stittle thanked The Commission for their time.  

Mr. William DeLaet, again, stepped forward to provide comment. He added that there is another 
subdivision that was attempted to develop near the cemetery. 

Mr. Trevor Staab, of 27250 Keystone Road, Ravenna, Nebraska, stepped forward to speak in 
opposition of the project. He testified that he, along with Sarah Ripp, have significant concerns 
regarding ecological impact and the existing sandy soil. He added that he, also, rents land from 
William DeLaet and operates a feed lot.  

He stated that he is well aware of the impacts of having residential development next to rural 
farming.  

He agreed with prior testimony from adjoining land owners that will have difficulty maintaining 
and spraying their properties with the residential development directly across the road.  

Chairperson Brady inquired if Mr. Staab found the location suitable, and Mr. Staab stated he did 
not believe it is, with consideration given to the soil types and the dangerous intersection. 

Deputy County Attorney Hoffmeister asked what would happen to family-owned land in two 
generations and Mr. Staab responded that residential development could occur. Attorney 
Hoffmeister explained that The Planning Commission needs to consider highest and best use 
when approving or denying any development. He added that, other than Kearney, Ravenna, 
Gibbon, and potentially, Elm Creek, are classified as “city-sized”. 

Mr. Staab thanked The Commission for their time.  

Mr. Chad Dixon stepped forward to discuss concerns brought forth by the public. He referenced 
the intersection that was brought forth. He testified that he believed the intersection was a county 
road concern, not a development issue. However, he continued, the developer would consider 
negotiating a different road design. Vice-Chairperson Keep recommended having a merger lane. 
Deputy County Attorney Hoffmeister stated that may not be a feasible option with the way the 
road is situated.  

Mr. Dixon added that the development was available ground and very desirable with the river 
valley frontage.  

Deputy County Attorney Hoffmeister asked where the power to the subdivision would be located 
and Mr. Dixon responded that it was located on the corner. 

Chairperson Brady inquired if there was flexibility regarding the road design and Mr. Dixon 
responded that there is room for flexibility, if the need occurred, as the application in front of 
The Commission is a preliminary plat.  

Deputy County Attorney Hoffmeister reminded The Commission that the discussion at hand was 
regarding the Change of Zoning Application for Agricultural – Residential (AGR) District. He 
stated that The Commission needed to consider the allowability of this area being more densely 
populated. 



 

6 
 

Mr. James Friesen, of 1330 W. 102nd Street Place, Kearney, Nebraska, stepped forward to speak 
in favor of the project. Mr. Friesen stated that his wife is one of the investors. He stated that the 
development group, that is spearheading this project, is considering the needs of Ravenna. The 
concerns brought forth, he acknowledged, are good concerns and he appreciated everyone’s 
testimony. He stated that he lives in a rural subdivision and has faced the concerns that were 
discussed, but his perception was that most of the neighbors were understanding of living in an 
agriculturally-driven area.   

Deputy County Attorney Hoffmeister asked Mr. Friesen how the development would benefit 
Ravenna and Mr. Friesen responded that Ravenna does not have a rural residential option within 
short driving distance, as do the other communities in Buffalo County.    

Deputy County Attorney Hoffmeister inquired if the school system in Ravenna was capable of 
providing support for families that may reside in the subdivision and Mr. Friesen answered that 
he believed that it could, but there may be challenges.  

Chairperson Brady asked if the developers have been approached about individuals interested in 
purchasing the lots in the proposed subdivision and Mr. Friesen said that they are not being 
actively marketed, but have been approached by individuals who believe the development is a 
good idea. Furthermore, he added, it will be encouraged to have individuals who purchase the 
lots keep some areas native.  

Mr. Sedlacek inquired if Mr. Friesen’s bank is financing the development and Mr. Friesen stated 
that they are not.  

Mr. Friesen thanked The Commission for their time. 

Mr. Larry Behrendt, of 25710 Imperial Road, Ravenna, Nebraska, stepped forward to speak in 
favor of the project. He testified that he is, also, part of the investment group. He explained that 
the development group was created after Ravenna’s grocery store closed. In order to provide a 
service to Ravenna, the group decided it would be beneficial to create a rural residential 
development. He added that he was interested in buying one of the proposed lots to build a 
smaller house, after selling his existing residence to his daughter. He said that he and his wife 
want the opportunity to reside closer to Ravenna and avoid traveling via gravel roads.  

Deputy County Attorney Hoffmeister asked Mr. Behrendt where he resides, in relation to the 
proposed development and Mr. Behrendt responded that he lives approximately five miles 
southwest.  

Mr. Behrendt acknowledged the concerns brought forth, but stated that they’ve already tried to 
develop lands around Ravenna and they can’t acquire any.  

He added that the development group has concerns regarding the inability of Ravenna to provide 
exceptional housing for new residents, as well as the school student numbers dwindling.   

Mr. Behrendt thanked The Commission for their time.  



 

7 
 

Mr. Tom Hongsermeier, of 33085 Keystone Road, Ravenna, Nebraska, stepped forward to speak 
in favor of the project. He stated that he is also part of the development group. He said that he 
thinks that there is not enough available housing for Ravenna residents who want the opportunity 
of country living, but live within a short distance of city amenities.  

The environment, he continued, is a concern for him as well. However, he stated there will be 
covenants in place to mitigate against wind and water erosion. Living in the country, he added, 
people need to be understanding of country living and agricultural uses.  

He acknowledged the intersection concerns, but said that it has been that way for 50 years.  

Mr. Hongsermeier thanked The Commission for their time.  

Discussion occurred regarding building along minimum maintenance roads. 

Discussion occurred regarding the unincorporated village of Poole.  

Chairperson Brady asked if anyone else wished to speak. No one spoke. 

Chairperson Brady closed the public hearing at 8:18. 

Deputy County Attorney Hoffmeister referred to the following section in Buffalo County Zoning 
Regulations, Section 11.3: 

“The procedure for the consideration and adoption of any such proposed amendments shall be in 
like manner as that required for the consideration and adoption of the resolution except herein 
before or herein after modified.  For action on zoning amendments, a quorum of the Planning 
Commission is more than one-half (½) of all the members.  A vote either for or against an 
amendment by a majority of all the Planning Commission members present constitutes a 
recommendation of the commission; whereas a vote either for or against an amendment by less 
than a majority of the Planning Commission present constitutes a failure to recommend.  When 
amending zoning district boundaries, the Planning Commission and County Board where 
applicable and authorized may place conditions upon property sought to be rezoned.  (Resolution 
9-14-04) 

When the Planning Commission submits a recommendation of approval or disapproval of such 
amendment, the County Board, if it approves such recommendation, may either adopt such 
recommendation by resolution or take no further action thereof as appropriate.  In the event the 
Planning Commission submits a failure to recommend, the County Board may take such action 
as it deems appropriate.  Upon receipt of a recommendation of the Planning Commission which 
the County Board disapproves, the said governing body shall return such recommendation to the 
Planning Commission with a statement specifying the basis for disapproval, and such 
recommendation shall be considered in like manner as that required for the original 
recommendation returned to the Planning Commission. If such amendment shall affect the 
boundaries of any district, the resolution shall define the change or the boundary as amended, 
shall order the Official Zoning Map(s) to be changed to reflect such amendment, and shall amend 
the section of the resolution incorporating the same and reincorporate such Map as amended.” 



 

8 
 

Deputy County Attorney Hoffmeister counselled The Commission that they needed to provide 
reasoning if the project is approved or denied.  If they wished to approved the change of zoning 
request, the reasons for approval should be that the subdivision abuts a paved road, there is a 
need of a housing, it is within close proximity of the city of Ravenna, and has available utilities.  

Mr. Schmidt asked Mr. Hongsermeier what the existing land is being used for and Mr. 
Hongsermeier responded with grazing. Mr. Schmidt inquired the number of cattle situated on the 
land and Mr. Hongsermeier responded seven to eight acres per head.  

Vice-Chairperson Keep said that he was happy with the subdivision being located within close 
proximity of Ravenna and along a paved road, but had concerns regarding the intersection. He 
said that this particular subdivision fits within the Agricultural – Residential intent.  

Mr. Schmidt agreed with Vice-Chairperson Keep. He stated that he was, also, concerned about 
the intersection. However, he continued, after researching census data, he found that the 
population in Ravenna is slipping and this development may provide a public service to 
Ravenna.  

Secretary Wolfe commented that she appreciated the concept of a rural residential development 
to support a community. She, also, appreciated the use of covenants to address some concerns. 

Chairperson Brady stated that he understood the ecological and economic impacts of the 
subdivision and that the traffic concerns need to be addressed. He stated that rural residential 
should be allowed, but under the right conditions.  

Mr. Stubblefield stated that he appreciated the covenants and that the development group is 
developing the subdivision for the good of Ravenna. He added that regardless of where the 
development occurs, there could still be a significant increase of traffic along the road.  

Ms. Jeffs said that she appreciates the group considering the need for housing in Ravenna, 
placing the development along a paved road, supporting the school system with additional 
students, and being within close proximity of the city.  

Mr. Sedlacek commented that he appreciates everyone’s viewpoints from the public. He added 
that he has concerns regarding the dangerous curve along Keystone Road. However, he 
continued, he appreciated the 17-lot availability and having the previous land owner, Mr. 
Hongsermeier, involved in the project process.  

Deputy County Attorney Hoffmeister counselled that The Commission agrees that the project 
needs to progress, but how is the question. 

Vice-Chairperson Keep inquired what actions could be taken by The Buffalo County Highway 
Department to correct the curve along Keystone Road and Deputy County Attorney Hoffmeister 
advised that he is unable to speak on their behalf. He reminded The Commission they are tasked 
with establishing if this particular area is a suitable location for denser housing within close 
proximity of the city of Ravenna and with available utilities.  

Road dedication and vacation were discussed.  



 

9 
 

Chairperson Brady announced that The Commission would take a break at 8:41 P.M.  

The Commission reconvened at 8:50 P.M. with the following members present: Schmidt, Keep, 
Wolfe, Jeffs, Stubblefield, Sedlacek and Brady.  

Motion was made by Vice-Chairperson Keep, and seconded by Ms. Jeffs to favorably 
recommend the zoning map amendment, for property described as All of Government Lot 1, Part 
of the Northeast Quarter of the Northwest Quarter, Part of Government Lot 2, Part of the 
Southeast Quarter of the Northwest Quarter and Part of the Northwest Quarter of the Northeast 
Quarter of Section Nineteen (19), Township Twelve (12) North, Range Fourteen (14) West of 
the Sixth Principal Meridian, Buffalo County, Nebraska, to rezone approximately 73.26 Acres, 
more or less, from Agriculture (AG) to Agricultural – Residential (AGR) due to the subdivision 
abutting a paved road, the need of a housing, being within close proximity of the city of 
Ravenna, and availability of utilities to the Buffalo County  Board of Commissioners. 

Upon roll call vote, the following Board members voted “Aye”: Jeffs, Keep, Sedlacek, 
Stubblefield and Wolfe. 
Voting “Nay”: Brady and Schmidt.  
Abstain: None. 
Absent: Vacek. 
 
Motion carried. 
 
Chairperson Brady opened the public hearing for Agenda Item 5(b) at 8:53 P.M. regarding an 
Application for Preliminary Subdivision, “Riverview Estates Subdivision”, now known as 
“Poole Ranch Subdivision”, filed by Chad Dixon, licensed land surveyor, on behalf of Brian 
Stittle, member of Poole Ranch Developer, L.L.C., for property described as All of Government 
Lot 1, Part of the Northeast Quarter of the Northwest Quarter, Part of Government Lot 2, Part of 
the Southeast Quarter of the Northwest Quarter and Part of the Northwest Quarter of the 
Northeast Quarter of Section Nineteen (19), Township Twelve (12) North, Range Fourteen (14) 
West of the Sixth Principal Meridian, Buffalo County, Nebraska. 

Chad Dixon, of Miller and Associates, Consulting Engineers, P.C., located at 1111 Central 
Avenue, Kearney, Nebraska, stepped forward to present the application. He explained that it is a 
17-lot subdivision, abutting 340th Road. He added there will be roads dedicated to the public, one 
of which ending in a cul-de-sac, satisfying any road requirements set forth under the subdivision 
regulations.  

Mr. Dixon reviewed the road grades and the lot layouts. He explained that the development team 
went through the lots to establish desirable locations for residences and those locations are 
indicated on the plat.  

Mr. Dixon reviewed the drainage report, soils report, and roadway design. He, also, reviewed 
deviations, which are shown in The Planning Commission’s Packet. 

Mr. Dixon added that the utilities will come from the northwest corner of the subdivision and 
each lot will have its own well and septic.  



 

10 
 

Mr. Dixon stated that the developer intends to enter into a Road Maintenance Agreement for the 
public roads. 

Deputy County Attorney Hoffmeister counselled The Commission on their duties, shown under 
Buffalo County Subdivision Regulations, Section 3.08, “COMMISSION REFERRAL OF 
PRELIMINARY PLAT TO BOARD Following public hearing(s) regarding the Preliminary Plat, 
the Planning Commission shall recommend approval, disapproval, or approval with changes and 
the recommendation shall be transmitted to the Board within seven (7) days following decision 
meeting…” 

Deputy County Attorney Hoffmeister inquired where the postal boxes would be located and Mr. 
Dixon explained that there is a pull over area located in the western part of the subdivision. He 
added, the postal design will need to be approved by the Ravenna Postmaster.  

Deputy County Attorney Hoffmeister counselled The Commission that they need to assess 
whether the design of the plat is in compliance with the Buffalo County Subdivision Regulations.  

Chairperson Brady asked if anyone else wished to speak. No one spoke. 

Chairperson Brady closed the public hearing at 9:06 P.M. 

Chairperson Brady stated that he believed the curve along Keystone Road should have resolution 
before approval and Deputy County Attorney Hoffmeister referenced Buffalo County 
Subdivision Regulations, Section 3.06 (c), which states, "…regardless of whether the plat is 
recommended for approval or disapproval, the Preliminary plat shall be referred on to the County 
Board with 60 days of first public hearing unless a longer time is agreed upon with the 
subdivider. If not so referred, the County Board may take it up for hearing after the 60 days has 
elapsed of the first public meeting.” He added that The Commission could place conditions on 
the preliminary plat, if they found it necessary.  

Discussion occurred regarding road designs and requirements. 

Mr. Stubblefield commented that The Commission should give the developer the opportunity to 
get to final design stages. 

Ms. Jeffs inquired whether The Commission could put conditions on the preliminary plat and 
Deputy County Attorney Hoffmeister advised they could. 

Deputy County Attorney Hoffmeister advised that The Commission could place a condition safe 
entry point for the subdivision, established by the county highway superintendent, for both the 
residents of the subdivision, as well as the travelling public. 

Chairperson Brady inquired if a safety study could be required and Deputy County Attorney 
Hoffmeister advised that it could be requested. 

Motion was made by Ms. Jeffs, and seconded by Secretary Wolfe to favorably recommend the 
Application for Preliminary Subdivision, “Riverview Estates Subdivision”, now known as 
“Poole Ranch Subdivision”, filed by Chad Dixon, licensed land surveyor, on behalf of Brian 
Stittle, member of Poole Ranch Developer, L.L.C., for property described as All of Government 



 

11 
 

Lot 1, Part of the Northeast Quarter of the Northwest Quarter, Part of Government Lot 2, Part of 
the Southeast Quarter of the Northwest Quarter and Part of the Northwest Quarter of the 
Northeast Quarter of Section Nineteen (19), Township Twelve (12) North, Range Fourteen (14) 
West of the Sixth Principal Meridian, Buffalo County, Nebraska to the Buffalo County Board of 
Commissioners with the following conditions: safe entry point for the subdivision, established by 
the Buffalo County Highway Superintendent, for both the residents of the subdivision, as well as 
the travelling public, a 10-year road maintenance agreement, and a safety study in consideration 
given to road design. 

Upon roll call vote, the following Board members voted “Aye”: Keep, Schmidt, Sedlacek, 
Stubblefield, Wolfe, Brady, and Jeffs. 
Voting “Nay”: None. 
Abstain: None. 
Absent: Vacek. 
 
Motion carried. 
 
Chairperson Brady opened the public hearing for Agenda Item 5(c) at 9:22 P.M., regarding an 
Application for Zoning Map Amendment, filed by Craig Bennett, of Miller & Associates 
Consulting Engineers, P.C., on behalf of Mark H. Meyer and C. Jayne Meyer, also known as 
Claudia Jayne Meyer, and Loren Bakko, Manager of Bakko Land, L.L.C., for property described 
as part of the West Half of the Northwest Quarter of Section Eight (8), Township Nine (9) North, 
Range Sixteen (16) West of the Sixth Principal Meridian, Buffalo County, Nebraska, to rezone 
approximately 30.13 Acres, more or less, from Agricultural – Residential (AGR) to Commercial 
(C). 

Craig Bennett of Miller and Associates, Consulting Engineers, P.C., located at 1111 Central 
Avenue, Kearney, Nebraska, and Loren Bakko, of Arcadia, Nebraska, stepped forward to present 
the application. Mr. Bennett stated that the applicants have requested to rezone a tract of land, 
next to an airstrip from Agricultural – Residential (AGR) to Commercial (C). He added that, in 
an effort to be transparent, the applicant intends to rezone the tract for his business in lieu of a 
special use permit. Mr. Bennett stated that the tract to be rezoned abuts Cottonmill Avenue, a 
two-lane paved road, on the west side and 100th Street on the North side. He added that the tract, 
now, is agricultural in nature and is currently being farmed. He continued that the airstrip abuts 
on the east side. 

Mr. Bakko testified that he is from west-central Minnesota and he owns and operates a 5th 
generation farm. Additionally, he continued, he owns an agricultural business, which works with 
tub grinders and converts hay bales for animal consumption. The business has seen an increase in 
Nebraska clients, he continued. In 2020, he added, the business opened a location in Litchfield, 
Nebraska and then moved to Arcadia, Nebraska. He stated that they are seeking a more 
permanent location. In Minnesota, he said, the company employs approximately 30 people and 
six in Nebraska. He discussed the history with the existing property owners. He added that the 
remainder of the land they intend to purchase will be farmed. He stated that he is, also, a private 



 

12 
 

pilot and the abutting airstrip is a necessary use for him to travel between Minnesota and 
Nebraska three to four times a month.  

Mr. Bennett explained that this area is area is exceptional for the project due to access to paved 
major arterial roads and within close proximity to Riverdale and Kearney.  

Chairperson Brady asked how many acres Mr. Bakko is purchasing and Mr. Bakko answered 
200 acres. Mr. Bennett clarified that Mr. Bakko intends to rezone only 30 acres of the 200 acres, 
to provide immediate access to paved roads. 

Deputy County Attorney Hoffmeister asked the applicant if they would be willing to abide by a 
setback of 90 feet from the center of Cottonmill Avenue and from the center of 100th Street. Mr. 
Bennett recommended approval on behalf of Mr. Bakko with the consideration of future 
planning being either of those roads could expand to 80 feet wide. Mr. Bakko agreed. 

Chairperson Brady inquired whether the applicant intended to expand in the future. Mr. Bakko 
stated that he does not foresee a significant expansion, other than a shop, plane hangar, and 
customer equipment waiting on repair or after repair. Chairperson Brady asked if Mr. Bakko 
intended to expand southerly and Mr. Bakko explained that he intended to farm that area.  

Deputy County Attorney Hoffmeister reminded The Commission that agricultural service 
establishments are allowed by Special Use Permit in the Agricultural – Residential (AGR) 
District and the applicant could seek a Special Use Permit. 

Mr. Bakko explained that the tub grinders are assembled in Minnesota, but the location in 
Kearney would be only for repairs. He added that, in Arcadia, they see approximately one to 
three customers a day.  

Deputy County Attorney Hoffmeister inquired how many employees were projected to work at 
that location and Mr. Bakko stated that he projected six - eight employees, as that number is 
employed at the Arcadia location.  

Deputy County Attorney Hoffmeister inquired the number of freight truck traffic and Mr. Bakko 
answered that they receive approximately one or two freight trucks a week.    

Discussion occurred the number of residences within a certain parameter of the proposed rezone. 

Deputy County Attorney Hoffmeister asked Mr. Bennett how much of Riverdale’s extra 
territorial jurisdiction abuts the property and Mr. Bennett stated that Buffalo County’s GIS shows 
that it intersects, but he believes it is incorrect based on the village of Riverdale’s records. He 
stated that, based on the village of Riverdale’s records, their jurisdictional boundary ends north 
of 100th Street.  

Subdivision clusters within close proximity to the rezone were reviewed.  

Secretary Wolfe asked Mr. Bakko to describe the machinery that will be repaired. Mr. Bakko 
stated that the machinery will be either on a semi-tractor or pulled by a semi-tractor. 



 

13 
 

Deputy County Attorney Hoffmeister noted that Apple Acres Orchard, which is a similar 
agricultural commercial use is operational and located within a close proximity to the proposed 
rezoning. 

Chairperson Brady asked if Mr. Bakko will be conducting truck repair business as well and Mr. 
Bakko confirmed, under certain circumstances. 

Chairperson Brady inquired why Mr. Bakko didn’t pursue a Special Use Permit process and Mr. 
Bakko explained that he wanted to operate within the parameters of the Commercial District and 
to provide complete transparency. 

Secretary Wolfe asked how far customers would travel to have their machines repaired and Mr. 
Bakko responded that his business can draw from as far as within Nebraska, and Kansas, 
Colorado, and Iowa. 

Chairperson Brady asked if his clientele were custom operators and Mr. Bakko confirmed.  

Mr. Schmidt asked if grinding would be occurring on site and Mr. Bakko stated there would not 
be grinding on site, unless to test equipment. 

Chairperson Brady inquired if Mr. Bakko would be stockpiling any materials and Mr. Bakko 
stated that he did not have that intent, other fuel or natural gas. 

Chairperson Brady asked if anyone on The Commission had questions. No one spoke. 

Chairperson Brady asked if anyone of the public wished to comment. 

Mr. Scott Fitzke, of 8841 Cottonmill Avenue, Kearney, Nebraska, stepped forward to provide 
testimony. He explained that he resides south of the proposed zoning amendment. Mr. Fitzke 
stated he had several questions. He asked if this particular tract gets zoned to Commercial, could 
the entire tract be rezoned to Commercial. Deputy County Attorney Hoffmeister stated that any 
uses, listed under the Commercial District, is either an allowable use or a conditional use. 

Deputy County Attorney Hoffmeister added that once a rezone occurs, the remainder of the tract 
or tracts within close proximity, could be more favorable for that same zoning district and may, 
also, be rezoned, although another public hearing will be need to be held. He added that the 
village of Riverdale, within close proximity, has similar industrial uses almost within one-half 
mile to the north of the tract in question.  It was noted that Riverdale exercised extraterritorial 
zoning jurisdiction one-half mile from corporate limits.   

Vice-Chairperson Keep asked how the air strip was zoned and Deputy County Attorney 
Hoffmeister stated it was zoned Agricultural – Residential (AGR2).  He noted that the air strip 
had existed pre-zoning, perhaps back to the early 1980’s.  

Mr. Fitzke stated that he has no issues with the presented business, but has concerns about what 
future uses could be established. 

Mr. Fitzke added that he is, also, concerned about the cleanliness of the location.  

Mr. Fitzke thanked The Commission for their time. 



 

14 
 

Dr. Mark Meyer, of 5355 W 85th Street, Kearney, Nebraska, stepped forward to speak in favor of 
the project. Dr. Meyer stated that he has been to Mr. Bakko’s facility in Minnesota and it is a 
clean operation. He said that the operation is much needed in Buffalo County. He added that 
several individuals have contacted him in the past to purchase the property for residential 
development and Dr. Meyer refused the proposal. Dr. Meyer continued that he believed Mr. 
Bakko would not develop the area further.  

Chairperson Brady inquired if Dr. Meyer still resided at his house and Dr. Meyer confirmed. 

Dr. Meyer thanked The Commission for their time. 

Ms. Ashley Bakko, of 28958 190th Avenue, Glenwood, Minnesota, stepped forward to speak in 
favor of the project. She identified herself as Mr. Bakko’s daughter who, currently, lives and 
helps run the farm in Minnesota.  

She stated that she wanted to reference some of the concerns set forth by the public. She stated 
that she has worked with her family’s business for 10 years and plans to take it over, along with 
her two sisters. She added that she is an owner and a manager and has been travelling between 
Nebraska and Minnesota for the last several years.  

Ms. Bakko stated that her family intends to be at a permanent location for many years and, at this 
time, does not plan to expand further in Nebraska.  

Deputy County Attorney Hoffmeister asked Ms. Bakko if she intends to reside on the property 
and Ms. Bakko responded that she does not. 

Ms. Bakko testified that the business does not grind hay on site and does not have a need to test 
the grinders. She added that there is no smoke, material stockpiles, or trash located around the 
existing structure in Arcadia.  

Ms. Bakko thanked The Commission for their time. 

Mr. Gary Hazzard, of 8875 Cottonmill Avenue, Kearney, Nebraska, stepped forward to provide 
testimony. He stated that lives directly south of the proposed map amendment.  He said that he 
has no objections to the proposed use. 

Discussion occurred regarding growth in rural areas. 

Deputy County Attorney Hoffmeister asked Mr. Hazzard what he believes the future use of this 
area will be and Mr. Hazzard responded that he believes it will be developed to the east and west 
of his residence. 

Mr. Hazzard thanked The Commission for their time.  

Secretary Wolfe asked Mr. Bakko about the size of the structure and Mr. Bakko responded that it 
will be 150 feet by 200 feet. 

Existing Special Use Permits and comparable uses in Buffalo County were reviewed.  



 

15 
 

Chairperson Brady stated that the use would be more desirable as a Special Use Permit. 
Permitted uses and Special Use Permit uses in the Agricultural – Residential (AGR) District 
were reviewed. 

Deputy County Attorney Hoffmeister reminded The Commission that the existing air strip, that 
abuts on the east side is more of an industrial use. 

Chairperson Brady asked if anyone else wished to speak. No one spoke. 

Chairperson Brady closed the public hearing at 10:17 P.M. 

Deputy County Attorney Hoffmeister referred to the following section in Buffalo County Zoning 
Regulations, Section 11.3: 

“The procedure for the consideration and adoption of any such proposed amendments shall be in 
like manner as that required for the consideration and adoption of the resolution except herein 
before or herein after modified.  For action on zoning amendments, a quorum of the Planning 
Commission is more than one-half (½) of all the members.  A vote either for or against an 
amendment by a majority of all the Planning Commission members present constitutes a 
recommendation of the commission; whereas a vote either for or against an amendment by less 
than a majority of the Planning Commission present constitutes a failure to recommend.  When 
amending zoning district boundaries, the Planning Commission and County Board where 
applicable and authorized may place conditions upon property sought to be re-
zoned.  (Resolution 9-14-04) 

When the Planning Commission submits a recommendation of approval or disapproval of such 
amendment, the County Board, if it approves such recommendation, may either adopt such 
recommendation by resolution or take no further action thereof as appropriate.  In the event the 
Planning Commission submits a failure to recommend, the County Board may take such action 
as it deems appropriate.  Upon receipt of a recommendation of the Planning Commission which 
the County Board disapproves, the said governing body shall return such recommendation to the 
Planning Commission with a statement specifying the basis for disapproval, and such 
recommendation shall be considered in like manner as that required for the original 
recommendation returned to the Planning Commission. If such amendment shall affect the 
boundaries of any district, the resolution shall define the change or the boundary as amended, 
shall order the Official Zoning Map(s) to be changed to reflect such amendment, and shall amend 
the section of the resolution incorporating the same and reincorporate such Map as amended.” 

Chairperson Brady asked if anyone from The Commission had any comments regarding the 
proposed zoning map amendment. Mr. Schmidt stated that he would rather see the area zoned 
Commercial.  The closest land use to the north is industrial use within the Village of Riverdale.  
The closest residential use is about three eights of a mile.  The air strip’s land use is a factor that 
could limit more residential use close to that air strip.   
 
Mr. Schmidt asked Dr. Meyer if this particular rezone was located within a distance of the no 
longer operational onion processing structure and Dr. Meyer confirmed.  
 



 

16 
 

Ms. Jeffs said she appreciated the rezone occurring along a paved road with immediate access to 
Highway 40.  

Mr. Keep stated that the air strip, which is more of an industrial use, is abutting the proposed 
commercial tract. He said he thinks the use fits.  

Chairperson Brady declared that he does not have an issue with the applicants’ proposed 
business plan, but is concerned with what uses could follow his and how that could affect the 
residences in the area. 

Agricultural – Residential (AGR) District permitted special uses were reviewed. 

Secretary Wolfe stated that she had some reservations about rezoning a large tract of land in the 
middle of the Agricultural – Residential (AGR) District. She added, however, she appreciated 
Mr. Bakko’s business plan.  

Deputy County Attorney Hoffmeister stated it should be added as a condition that any structure 
have a minimum setback of 90 feet from the center of Cottonmill Avenue and from the center of 
100th Street.  That setback adjustment would be needed for foreseeable future use and the 
widening of the right of way for these two roads that will occur as more development occurs in 
the vicinity.  

Motion was made by Mr. Schmidt, and seconded by Ms. Jeffs to favorably recommend the 
Application for Zoning Map Amendment, filed by Craig Bennett, of Miller & Associates 
Consulting Engineers, P.C., on behalf of Mark H. Meyer and C. Jayne Meyer, also known as 
Claudia Jayne Meyer, and Loren Bakko, Manager of Bakko Land, L.L.C., for property described 
as part of the West Half of the Northwest Quarter of Section Eight (8), Township Nine (9) North, 
Range Sixteen (16) West of the Sixth Principal Meridian, Buffalo County, Nebraska, to rezone 
approximately 30.13 Acres, more or less, from Agricultural – Residential (AGR) to Commercial 
(C) with the condition that any structure have a minimum setback of 90 feet from the center of 
Cottonmill Avenue and from the center of 100th Street. 

Upon roll call vote, the following Board members voted “Aye”: Schmidt, Sedlacek, Stubblefield, 
Wolfe, Keep, and Jeffs. 

Voting “Nay”: Brady. 
Abstain: None. 
Absent: Vacek. 
 
Motion carried. 
 
Old Business 
 
Minutes 
 
Motion was made by Ms. Jeffs, and seconded by Secretary Wolfe to approve the October 17, 
2024 meeting, as presented. 
 



 

17 
 

Upon roll call vote, the following Board members voted “Aye”: Jeffs, Keep, Schmidt, 
Stubblefield, Wolfe, and Brady. 
Voting “Nay”: None.  
Abstain: Sedlacek. 
Absent: Vacek.  
 
Motion carried. 
 
New Business 
 
Report on Previous Hearings 
Zoning Administrator Daniels reported that the Buffalo County Board of Commissioners 
reviewed the proposed Zoning and Subdivision Regulations on November 12, 2024 and the draft 
was tabled until December 10, 2024. She explained to The Commission that she will provide 
updates as the process progresses. 
 
Zoning Administrator Daniels reviewed the correspondence with The Commission. She notified 
The Commission of Tech One Fourth being withdrawn. She, also, reviewed the Dawson County 
Notice of Zoning Regulations for code amendments. 
 
Zoning Administrator Daniels asked if any members of The Planning Commission wished to put 
forward an application to serve on The Buffalo County Board of Adjustment. Ms. Jeffs stated 
she would like to be considered and would put forth an application. 
 
Zoning Administrator Daniels thanked the following members for renewing their terms: Tammy 
Jeffs, Scott Brady, and Scott Stubblefield. She, also, thanked Kurt Schmidt for his years of 
service and congratulated him on his recent election to the city of Kearney City Council. 
 
Zoning Administrator Daniels reminded The Commission of the upcoming Christmas Party on 
December 6, 2024, and to let her know if anyone wished to attend.  
 
Next Meeting 
 
The next meeting will be December 19, 2024, if necessary. 
 
Adjourn 
 
Chairperson Brady adjourned the meeting at 10:35 P.M. 
 
 
___________________________________   _____________________________
 Scott Brady, Chairperson     Loye Wolfe, Secretary 

Buffalo County Planning Commission           Buffalo County Planning Commission 
 



Zoning 
Agenda 

 
 

Item #1 
 

 







SE1/4

SECTION 18, T12N, R14W

(UNPLATTED)

NE1/4

SECTION 24, T12N, R15W

(UNPLATTED)

SE1/4

SECTION 13, T12N, R15W

(UNPLATTED)

NE1/4  NW1/4

SECTION 19, T12N, R14W

(UNPLATTED)

NW1/4  NE1/4

SECTION 19, T12N, R14W

(UNPLATTED)

SW1/4

SECTION 18, T12N, R14W

(UNPLATTED)

Consulting Engineers, P.C.
Miller & Associates 

1111 CENTRAL AVENUE
KEARNEY, NE 68847-6833

Tel: 308-234-6456
Fax: 308-234-1146

www.miller-engineers.com

0

SCALE IN FEET

NW1/4 NW1/4

(GOV'T LOT 1)

SECTION 19, T12N, R14W

SW1/4 NW1/4

GOV'T LOT 2

SECTION 19, T12N, R14W

(UNPLATTED)

SE1/4  NW1/4

SECTION 19, T12N, R14W

(UNPLATTED)

NORTH LINE NW1/4 SECTION 19 NORTH LINE NE1/4 SECTION 19

250 500

REZONE EXHIBIT

NOXID DAHC

LS-672

NE
BRA S KA

REG I STERED

ROYEVRUS DNAL

P.O.B.
W

ES
T 

LIN
E 

NW
1/4

 O
F 

SE
CT

IO
N 

19

WEST LINE NE1/4 SECTION 19

LEGAL DESCRIPTION

A tract of  land being all of  Government Lot 1, part of  the Northeast Quarter of  the
Northwest Quarter (NE1/4 NW1/4), part of  Government Lot 2, part of  the Southeast
Quarter of  the Northwest Quarter (SE1/4 NW1/4) and part of  the Northwest Quarter
of the Northeast Quarter (NW1/4 NE1/4) of  Section Nineteen (19), Township
Twelve (12) North, Range Fourteen (14) West of  the 6th Principal Meridian,
Buffalo County, Nebraska, and more particularly described as follows:
BEGINNING at a 5/8" rebar at the Northwest corner of Section 19;
thence N 89°33'01" E on the North line of the Northwest Quarter of said Section 19,
and all bearings contained herein are relative thereto, a distance of 2570.47 feet to a
concrete post at the Northwest corner of the Northeast Quarter of said Section 19;
thence N 89°32'23" E on the North line of  said Northeast Quarter a distance of
226.41 feet to a 5/8” rebar w/cap;
thence S 00°27'37" E a distance of 361.94 feet to a 5/8” rebar w/cap;
thence S 54°10'09" W a distance of 1712.63 feet to a 5/8” rebar w/cap;
thence S 84°36'19" W a distance of  1423.13 feet to the West line of  said Northwest
Quarter;
thence N 00°13'08" E on said West line a distance of  1476.31 feet to the Point of
Beginning.
Containing 73.26 acres, more or less.

                  (S E A L)

__________________________
Chad Dixon
Nebr. Reg.L.S. No. 672

Date _____________________

AutoCAD SHX Text
12/17/2024 4:00 PM

AutoCAD SHX Text
G:\Projects\130\130-LS\2023\130-LS-007-23-TH SUB\Civil-Dwgs\Design Drawings\Survey Design\EX_Base Pool Ranch Sub.dwg

AutoCAD SHX Text
PLOTTED:

AutoCAD SHX Text
11/14/2024 3:18 PM

AutoCAD SHX Text
SAVED:

AutoCAD SHX Text
----

AutoCAD SHX Text
-REZONING PLAT- AG Agricultural District to AGR Agricultural Residential District



 

Miller & Associates 
CONSULTING ENGINEERS, P.C. 

1111 Central Ave. Kearney, NE 68847-6833 
 

Tel: 308-234-6456 
Fax: 308-234-1146 

www.miller-engineers.com 

October 21, 2024 
Kearney, NE 
 
Buffalo County Planning & Zoning Commission 
P.O. Box 1270 
Kearney, NE 68848 
 
Re: Pool Ranch Subdivision statement 
 Project No. 130-LS-007-23 
 
To Whom It May Concern: 
 
Poole Ranch Developer LLC is submitting an application and seeking approval 
for rezoning and a preliminary plat for a 17-lot subdivision in the Southeast 
quadrant of 340th Road and Keystone Road Southwest of Ravenna.  
The main entrance to the subdivision will be 340th Road which connects to the 
paved intersection of 340th Road and Keystone Road. This asphalt road connects 
the towns of Pleasanton and Ravenna. The intent of the development is to build 
the interior roads to the required RL-2 standard for gravel surface and enter a 
roadway maintenance contract with the County. Preliminary road design will 
show that there is a need for a drainage crossing 340th Road and the drainage 
study shows no additional runoff caused by the development. 
 
Following Section 7.03 of the current Buffalo County Subdivision Regulations, the 
following information is stated. 
 

A. The Subdivider has an interest in the surrounding land that lies to the east 
and the south of the Preliminary Plat. This land is owned by one of the 
members of Poole Ranch Developer, LLC and will remain as Pasture. 

 
B. Special provisions needed for this application are rezoning the Subdivision 

from Agricultural to Agricultural-Residential. This will allow the Developer 
to place residential structures closer than the required 1000’ separation 
and density of 4 houses per ¼ Section in the AG zone. 

 
C. The Subdivider information: 
Owner: Poole Ranch Developer, LLC 
33085 Keystone Rd., Ravenna, NE  
Brian Stittle 308-390-0011 

 
D. The above-described Subdivision conforms to all Buffalo County Design 

Standards except the following. 
 
 
 
 



 

Miller & Associates 
CONSULTING ENGINEERS, P.C. 

1111 Central Ave. Kearney, NE 68847-6833 
 

Tel: 308-234-6456 
Fax: 308-234-1146 

www.miller-engineers.com 

 
 
 
 
 
Sec. 4.03 STREET, ROAD AND OTHER RIGHT-OF-WAY 
In all cases of permanent dead-end streets and roads, cul-de-sac rights-of-way 
shall be dedicated. Streets and roads ending in a cul-de-sac shall not be longer 
than six hundred (600) feet. This may be extended when the topographical rise 
and fall of the cul-de-sac street does not exceed six (6) feet from the highest 
elevation to the lowest elevation of the road measured from the center of the 
street at the intersection of entry to the cul-de-sac road to the furthest point of 
cul-de-sac from the intersection. 
 
Sec. 4.06 BLOCKS  
No block shall be longer than thirteen hundred twenty (1,320) feet. This may be 
extended when the topographical rise and fall of the street does not exceed six 
(6) feet from the highest elevation to the lowest elevation of the block measured 
from the center of intersections of intersecting streets at opposite ends of the 
block. 
 
The proposed 340th Road Place has a designed length of 1,106’ from Welch 
Drive to the cul-de-sac. It will not have a rise or fall greater than 6’. Welch Drive 
(960’)runs south of 340th Road, with a steady downward grade. The entire length 
of the road is visible from both ends. This proposed road would be similar to the 
3,092’ Clubhouse Drive that was platted in Prairie Acres Second Subdivision. 
This unique development along with the challenging terrain are the contributing 
factors to increase 340th Road and Welch Drive beyond the 600’ length. With the 
RL-2 design standards and excellent sight visibility to the entire length both 
roads, we would recommend consideration of both roads to be extended beyond 
the 600’ limit. 
 
Sec. 4.07.F  
Access to highways, streets, and roads channeled through interior lots 
Residential lot arrangement shall be, whenever feasible and possible, such that 
no lot directly accesses a highway, street, or road, and shall access an interior 
subdivision road that combines access to highways, streets, and roads through 
interior subdivision roads. Excepted to this access limitation is a lot for a single-
family dwelling that has existed for five (5) years as a primary residence 
associated with a farm, which meets the minimum housing and health codes, and 
has a previously approved access to the highway, street, or road.  
 
It is not feasible for lots 1, 2, and part of 3 to access interior roads and will require 
access to Keystone Road. 
 
 



 

Miller & Associates 
CONSULTING ENGINEERS, P.C. 

1111 Central Ave. Kearney, NE 68847-6833 
 

Tel: 308-234-6456 
Fax: 308-234-1146 

www.miller-engineers.com 

 
 
 
 
 
 
Thank you for your consideration of these matters as we proceed with the 
Platting process. 
 
Very truly yours, 
MILLER & ASSOCIATES 
CUNSULTING ENGINEERS, P.C. 
 
 
 
Chad A. Dixon, R.L.S. 
 
 
 
 
Included with this submittal are the following items. 

• Application for a change of zoning 

• Rezoning Plat 

• Existing Land Use Map 

• Future Land Use Map 

• Existing Zoning Map 

• Road Classification Map 

• 300’ radius ownership map 

• Preliminary Plat Application 

• Vicinity map 

• Preliminary Plat 

• Soils report 

• Drainage report 

• Preliminary Roadway design 
 



SECTION 4 LAND USE PROFILE & PLAN. 
 

 
Buffalo County, Nebraska Comprehensive Plan – 2033. 4.10 

 

EXISTING LAND USE MAP. 
BUFFALO COUNTY, NEBRASKA 
ILLUSTRATION 4.2 
  

cadixon
Rectangle

cadixon
Callout
PROJECT
LOCATION



SECTION 4 LAND USE PROFILE & PLAN. 
 

 
Buffalo County, Nebraska Comprehensive Plan – 2033. 4.19 

 

FUTURE LAND USE MAP. 
BUFFALO COUNTY, NEBRASKA 
ILLUSTRATION 4.3 
  

PROJECT
LOCATION



SECTION 4 LAND USE PROFILE & PLAN. 
 

 
Buffalo County, Nebraska Comprehensive Plan – 2033. 4.24 

 

EXISTING ZONING MAP 
BUFFALO COUNTY, NEBRASKA 
ILLUSTRATION 4.3 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

LEGEND 
 

AGRICULTURAL 
 
 

AGRICULTURAL-
RESIDENTIAL 
 
 

COMMERCIAL 
 
 

INDUSTRIAL 
 
SPECIAL USE 

PROJECT
LOCATION



SECTION 5 PUBLIC FACILITIES & TRANSPORTATION. 
 

 

Buffalo County, Nebraska Comprehensive Plan – 2033. 5.18 

 

 

STATE FUNCTIONAL CLASSIFICATION MAP 

ILLUSTRATION 5.5 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Source: Nebraska Department of Transportation. 

PROJECT 
LOCATION





Poole Ranch Developer Aerial/Floodplain Map Created by: null
Parcels

Parcel Numbers

Subdivisions

Roads

Townships

Sections

Floodplain

A

AE

AH

AO

X



Poole Ranch Developer Zoning/Floodplain Map Created by: null
Parcels

Parcel Numbers

Subdivisions

Roads

Townships

Sections

Zoning

AGRICULTURAL

AGRICULTURAL-RESIDENTIAL

COMMERCIAL

INDUSTRIAL

RURAL CONSERVATION

Floodplain

A

AE

AH

AO

X



Zoning 
Agenda 

 
 

Item #2 
 

 





LEGAL DESCRIPTION

A tract of land being all of Government Lot 1, part of the Northeast Quarter of the
Northwest Quarter (NE1/4 NW1/4), part of Government Lot 2, part of the Southeast
Quarter of the Northwest Quarter (SE1/4 NW1/4) and part of the Northwest Quarter
of the Northeast Quarter (NW1/4 NE1/4) of Section Nineteen (19), Township
Twelve (12) North, Range Fourteen (14) West of the 6th Principal Meridian,
Buffalo County, Nebraska, and more particularly described as follows:
BEGINNING at a 5/8" rebar at the Northwest corner of Section 19;
thence N 89°33'01" E on the North line of the Northwest Quarter of said Section 19,
and all bearings contained herein are relative thereto, a distance of 2570.47 feet to a
concrete post at the Northwest corner of the Northeast Quarter of said Section 19;
thence N 89°32'23" E on the North line of said Northeast Quarter a distance of
226.41 feet to a 5/8” rebar w/cap;
thence S 00°27'37" E a distance of 361.94 feet to a 5/8” rebar w/cap;
thence S 54°10'09" W a distance of 1712.63 feet to a 5/8” rebar w/cap;
thence S 84°36'19" W a distance of 1423.13 feet to the West line of said Northwest
Quarter;
thence N 00°13'08" E on said West line a distance of 1476.31 feet to the Point of
Beginning.
Containing 73.26 acres, more or less.

GOV'T LOT 1

SECTION 19, T12N, R14W

GOV'T LOT 2

SECTION 19, T12N, R14W

(UNPLATTED)

SE1/4  NW1/4

SECTION 19, T12N, R14W

(UNPLATTED)

SW1/4

SECTION 18, T12N, R14W

(UNPLATTED) SE1/4

SECTION 18, T12N, R14W

(UNPLATTED)

NE1/4

SECTION 24, T12N, R15W

(UNPLATTED)

SE1/4

SECTION 13, T12N, R15W

(UNPLATTED)

340th ROAD

K
E

Y
ST

O
N

E
 R

O
A

D

NOTES

THIS PLAT PREPARED
October, 2024 FOR:

Poole Ranch Developer, LLC
33085 Keystone Road
Ravenna, NE 68869

Current Zoning:
AG Agricultural District

Proposed Zoning:
AGR Agricultural Residential District
  Minimum Area: 3.0 Ac
  Building Setbacks:
     -Front Yard: 50'
     -Side Yard:   10'
     -Rear Yard:  15'

BUFFALO COUNTY-POOLE RANCH SUBDIVISION

Consulting Engineers, P.C.
Miller & Associates 

BASIS OF BEARINGS:

All bearings are based on Buffalo County Low
Distortion Projection from Nebraska State
Surveyor's Office.
Projection = Transverse Mercator
Scale Factor = 1.0000959
Central Meridian = 98°56'00" West
Standard Parallel = 40°51'00" North
False N/E = 25000/45000 (meters)
Spheroid - Datum = GRS80 - NAD83

NE1/4  NW1/4

SECTION 19, T12N, R14W

(UNPLATTED)

NW1/4  NE1/4

SECTION 19, T12N, R14W

(UNPLATTED)

SURVEYOR'S CERTIFICATE

I, Chad Dixon, Nebraska Professional Registered Land Surveyor No. 672, do
hereby certify that the survey on "POOLE RANCH SUBDIVISION", being all of
Government Lot 1, part of the Northeast Quarter of the Northwest Quarter (NE1/4
NW1/4), part of Government Lot 2, part of the Southeast Quarter of the Northwest
Quarter (SE1/4 NW1/4) and part of the Northwest Quarter of the Northeast Quarter
(NW1/4 NE1/4) of Section Nineteen (19), Township Twelve (12) North, Range
Fourteen (14) West of the 6th Principal Meridian, Buffalo County, Nebraska, was
performed under my direct supervision, the dimensions of the lots are as shown on
the above plat, the lots bear their own number, and that the survey was made using
known and recorded monuments. All information shown on the above plat is
accurate and correct to the best of my knowledge and belief.

              (S E A L)

                                                                
_______________________________________
Chad  Dixon
Nebraska Professional Registered Land Surveyor No. 672

Date ____________________

NOXID DAHC

LS-672

NE
BRA S KA

REG I STERED

ROYEVRUS DNAL

NORTH LINE NW1/4 SECTION 19

COUNTY ROAD R.O.W.

CO
UN

TY
 R

OA
D 

R.
O.

W
.

W
ES

T 
LIN

E 
NW

1/4
 O

F 
SE

CT
IO

N 
19

340th ROAD PLACE 340th ROAD PLACE

W
ELCH

PL
A

C
E

APPROVAL OF BUFFALO COUNTY, NEBRASKA,
PLANNING COMMISSION

The undersigned, ____________________________ (print name), Chairperson or
Vice Chairperson of the Buffalo County Planning and Zoning Commission do
hereby certify that the foregoing plat of "POOLE RANCH SUBDIVISION", being
all of Government Lot 1, part of the Northeast Quarter of the Northwest Quarter
(NE1/4 NW1/4), part of Government Lot 2, part of the Southeast Quarter of the
Northwest Quarter (SE1/4 NW1/4) and part of the Northwest Quarter of the
Northeast Quarter (NW1/4 NE1/4) of Section Nineteen (19), Township Twelve (12)
North, Range Fourteen (14) West of the 6th Principal Meridian, Buffalo County,
Nebraska, was submitted to the Buffalo County Planning and Zoning Commission
for a public meeting and review and that recommendation by the Buffalo County
Planning and Zoning Commission was made to the Buffalo County Board of
Commissioners on the

_____ day of __________________, 20___.

_______________________________________(signature)

_______________________________________(print name)
Chairperson or Vice Chairperson

NORTH LINE NE1/4 SECTION 19

WEST LINE NE1/4 SECTION 19

0

SCALE IN FEET

LEGEND
= SECTION CORNER
= CORNERS FOUND
= CORNERS TO BE ESTABLISHED
= CALCULATED POINT
= MEASURED DISTANCES
= RECORDED DISTANCES
= BUILDING SETBACK LINE
= 10' UTILITY EASEMENT
= POINT OF BEGINNING
=  FENCE LINE
=  UNDERGROUND ELECTRIC LINE
=  OVERHEAD ELECTRIC LINE
=   EDGE OF ROADWAY
=   CONTOUR LINE NAVD 88
=   POWER POLE

400200

NORTHEAST CORNER,
NORTHEAST QUARTER

SECTION 19, T12N, R14W

NORTHWEST CORNER,
NORTHEAST QUARTER

SECTION 19, T12N, R14W
NORTHWEST CORNER

SECTION 19, T12N, R14W
P.O.B.

SOUTHWEST CORNER,
NORTHWEST QUARTER
SECTION 19, T12N, R14W

AutoCAD SHX Text
33'

AutoCAD SHX Text
40'

AutoCAD SHX Text
118.00'(M)

AutoCAD SHX Text
1194.24'(M)

AutoCAD SHX Text
1103.05'(M)

AutoCAD SHX Text
123.66'(M)

AutoCAD SHX Text
33'

AutoCAD SHX Text
33'

AutoCAD SHX Text
33'

AutoCAD SHX Text
33'

AutoCAD SHX Text
33'

AutoCAD SHX Text
33'

AutoCAD SHX Text
33'

AutoCAD SHX Text
33'

AutoCAD SHX Text
66' RADIUS

AutoCAD SHX Text
40.19'(M)

AutoCAD SHX Text
33'

AutoCAD SHX Text
33'

AutoCAD SHX Text
50' BUILDING SETBACK LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
50' BUILDING SETBACK LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
50' BUILDING SETBACK LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
50' BUILDING SETBACK LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
66' RADIUS

AutoCAD SHX Text
40' DEDICATED RIGHT-OF-WAY

AutoCAD SHX Text
12/17/2024 4:03 PM

AutoCAD SHX Text
G:\Projects\130\130-LS\2023\130-LS-007-23-TH SUB\Civil-Dwgs\Design Drawings\Survey Design\EX_Base Pool Ranch Sub.dwg

AutoCAD SHX Text
PLOTTED:

AutoCAD SHX Text
11/14/2024 3:18 PM

AutoCAD SHX Text
SAVED:

AutoCAD SHX Text
----

AutoCAD SHX Text
CHAD DIXON L.S. No. 672

AutoCAD SHX Text
BYRON MAXSON

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRAWN BY:

AutoCAD SHX Text
PARTY CHIEF:

AutoCAD SHX Text
1111 CENTRAL AVENUE  KEARNEY, NE 68847-6833  Tel: 308-234-6456  Fax: 308-234-1146 www.miller-engineers.com

AutoCAD SHX Text
REVISION-DATE & REASON 

AutoCAD SHX Text
JOB NUMBER:

AutoCAD SHX Text
130-LS-007-23

AutoCAD SHX Text
PRELIMINARY PLAT -POOLE RANCH SUBDIVISION- ALL OF GOVERNMENT LOT 1, PART OF THE NORTHEAST QUARTER OF THE NORTHWEST QUARTER (NE1/4 NW1/4), PART OF GOVERNMENT LOT 2, PART OF THE SOUTHEAST QUARTER OF THE NORTHWEST QUARTER (SE1/4 NW1/4) AND PART OF THE NORTHWEST QUARTER OF THE NORTHEAST QUARTER (NW1/4 NE1/4) OF SECTION NINETEEN (19), TOWNSHIP TWELVE (12) NORTH, RANGE FOURTEEN (14) WEST OF THE SIXTH PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN, BUFFALO COUNTY, NEBRASKA WEST OF THE SIXTH PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN, BUFFALO COUNTY, NEBRASKAWEST OF THE SIXTH PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN, BUFFALO COUNTY, NEBRASKABUFFALO COUNTY, NEBRASKA COUNTY, NEBRASKA

AutoCAD SHX Text
   LEGEND  LEGEND 

AutoCAD SHX Text
(M)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(R)

AutoCAD SHX Text
P.O.B.

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOTE "A" SIGN EASEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
(NOT TO SCALE)

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 3

AutoCAD SHX Text
20.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text
20.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text
2100



Miller & Associates 
CONSULTING ENGINEERS, P.C. 

1111 Central Ave. Kearney, NE 68847-6833 

Tel: 308-234-6456 
Fax: 308-234-1146 

www.miller-engineers.com 

October 21, 2024 
Kearney, NE 

Buffalo County Planning & Zoning Commission 
P.O. Box 1270 
Kearney, NE 68848 

Re: Pool Ranch Subdivision statement 
Project No. 130-LS-007-23 

To Whom It May Concern: 

Poole Ranch Developer LLC is submitting an application and seeking approval 
for rezoning and a preliminary plat for a 17-lot subdivision in the Southeast 
quadrant of 340th Road and Keystone Road Southwest of Ravenna.  
The main entrance to the subdivision will be 340th Road which connects to the 
paved intersection of 340th Road and Keystone Road. This asphalt road connects 
the towns of Pleasanton and Ravenna. The intent of the development is to build 
the interior roads to the required RL-2 standard for gravel surface and enter a 
roadway maintenance contract with the County. Preliminary road design will 
show that there is a need for a drainage crossing 340th Road and the drainage 
study shows no additional runoff caused by the development. 

Following Section 7.03 of the current Buffalo County Subdivision Regulations, the 
following information is stated. 

A. The Subdivider has an interest in the surrounding land that lies to the east
and the south of the Preliminary Plat. This land is owned by one of the
members of Poole Ranch Developer, LLC and will remain as Pasture.

B. Special provisions needed for this application are rezoning the Subdivision
from Agricultural to Agricultural-Residential. This will allow the Developer
to place residential structures closer than the required 1000’ separation
and density of 4 houses per ¼ Section in the AG zone.

C. The Subdivider information:
Owner: Poole Ranch Developer, LLC
33085 Keystone Rd., Ravenna, NE
Brian Stittle 308-390-0011

D. The above-described Subdivision conforms to all Buffalo County Design
Standards except the following.



 

Miller & Associates 
CONSULTING ENGINEERS, P.C. 

1111 Central Ave. Kearney, NE 68847-6833 
 

Tel: 308-234-6456 
Fax: 308-234-1146 

www.miller-engineers.com 

 
 
 
 
 
Sec. 4.03 STREET, ROAD AND OTHER RIGHT-OF-WAY 
In all cases of permanent dead-end streets and roads, cul-de-sac rights-of-way 
shall be dedicated. Streets and roads ending in a cul-de-sac shall not be longer 
than six hundred (600) feet. This may be extended when the topographical rise 
and fall of the cul-de-sac street does not exceed six (6) feet from the highest 
elevation to the lowest elevation of the road measured from the center of the 
street at the intersection of entry to the cul-de-sac road to the furthest point of 
cul-de-sac from the intersection. 
 
Sec. 4.06 BLOCKS  
No block shall be longer than thirteen hundred twenty (1,320) feet. This may be 
extended when the topographical rise and fall of the street does not exceed six 
(6) feet from the highest elevation to the lowest elevation of the block measured 
from the center of intersections of intersecting streets at opposite ends of the 
block. 
 
The proposed 340th Road Place has a designed length of 1,106’ from Welch 
Drive to the cul-de-sac. It will not have a rise or fall greater than 6’. Welch Drive 
(960’)runs south of 340th Road, with a steady downward grade. The entire length 
of the road is visible from both ends. This proposed road would be similar to the 
3,092’ Clubhouse Drive that was platted in Prairie Acres Second Subdivision. 
This unique development along with the challenging terrain are the contributing 
factors to increase 340th Road and Welch Drive beyond the 600’ length. With the 
RL-2 design standards and excellent sight visibility to the entire length both 
roads, we would recommend consideration of both roads to be extended beyond 
the 600’ limit. 
 
Sec. 4.07.F  
Access to highways, streets, and roads channeled through interior lots 
Residential lot arrangement shall be, whenever feasible and possible, such that 
no lot directly accesses a highway, street, or road, and shall access an interior 
subdivision road that combines access to highways, streets, and roads through 
interior subdivision roads. Excepted to this access limitation is a lot for a single-
family dwelling that has existed for five (5) years as a primary residence 
associated with a farm, which meets the minimum housing and health codes, and 
has a previously approved access to the highway, street, or road.  
 
It is not feasible for lots 1, 2, and part of 3 to access interior roads and will require 
access to Keystone Road. 
 
 



 

Miller & Associates 
CONSULTING ENGINEERS, P.C. 

1111 Central Ave. Kearney, NE 68847-6833 
 

Tel: 308-234-6456 
Fax: 308-234-1146 

www.miller-engineers.com 

 
 
 
 
 
 
Thank you for your consideration of these matters as we proceed with the 
Platting process. 
 
Very truly yours, 
MILLER & ASSOCIATES 
CUNSULTING ENGINEERS, P.C. 
 
 
 
Chad A. Dixon, R.L.S. 
 
 
 
 
Included with this submittal are the following items. 

• Application for a change of zoning 

• Rezoning Plat 

• Existing Land Use Map 

• Future Land Use Map 

• Existing Zoning Map 

• Road Classification Map 

• 300’ radius ownership map 

• Preliminary Plat Application 

• Vicinity map 

• Preliminary Plat 

• Soils report 

• Drainage report 

• Preliminary Roadway design 
 





Soil Map—Buffalo County, Nebraska
(Hongsermeier)

Natural Resources
Conservation Service

Web Soil Survey
National Cooperative Soil Survey

12/21/2023
Page 1 of 3

45
37

90
0

45
38

20
0

45
38

50
0

45
38

80
0

45
39

10
0

45
39

40
0

45
39

70
0

45
40

00
0

45
40

30
0

45
37

90
0

45
38

20
0

45
38

50
0

45
38

80
0

45
39

10
0

45
39

40
0

45
39

70
0

45
40

00
0

45
40

30
0

504000 504300 504600 504900 505200 505500 505800

504000 504300 504600 504900 505200 505500 505800

41°  0' 54'' N
98

° 
 5

7'
 1

3'
' W

41°  0' 54'' N

98
° 
 5

5'
 4

8'
' W

40°  59' 29'' N

98
° 
 5

7'
 1

3'
' W

40°  59' 29'' N

98
° 
 5

5'
 4

8'
' W

N

Map projection: Web Mercator   Corner coordinates: WGS84   Edge tics: UTM Zone 14N WGS84
0 500 1000 2000 3000

Feet
0 150 300 600 900

Meters
Map Scale: 1:12,800 if printed on A portrait (8.5" x 11") sheet.



MAP LEGEND MAP INFORMATION

Area of Interest (AOI)
Area of Interest (AOI)

Soils
Soil Map Unit Polygons

Soil Map Unit Lines

Soil Map Unit Points

Special Point Features
Blowout

Borrow Pit

Clay Spot

Closed Depression

Gravel Pit

Gravelly Spot

Landfill

Lava Flow

Marsh or swamp

Mine or Quarry

Miscellaneous Water

Perennial Water

Rock Outcrop

Saline Spot

Sandy Spot

Severely Eroded Spot

Sinkhole

Slide or Slip

Sodic Spot

Spoil Area

Stony Spot

Very Stony Spot

Wet Spot

Other

Special Line Features

Water Features
Streams and Canals

Transportation
Rails

Interstate Highways

US Routes

Major Roads

Local Roads

Background
Aerial Photography

The soil surveys that comprise your AOI were mapped at 
1:20,000.

Please rely on the bar scale on each map sheet for map 
measurements.

Source of Map: Natural Resources Conservation Service
Web Soil Survey URL: 
Coordinate System: Web Mercator (EPSG:3857)

Maps from the Web Soil Survey are based on the Web Mercator 
projection, which preserves direction and shape but distorts 
distance and area. A projection that preserves area, such as the 
Albers equal-area conic projection, should be used if more 
accurate calculations of distance or area are required.

This product is generated from the USDA-NRCS certified data as 
of the version date(s) listed below.

Soil Survey Area: Buffalo County, Nebraska
Survey Area Data: Version 26, Sep 6, 2023

Soil map units are labeled (as space allows) for map scales 
1:50,000 or larger.

Date(s) aerial images were photographed: Aug 5, 2022—Oct 10, 
2022

The orthophoto or other base map on which the soil lines were 
compiled and digitized probably differs from the background 
imagery displayed on these maps. As a result, some minor 
shifting of map unit boundaries may be evident.

Soil Map—Buffalo County, Nebraska
(Hongsermeier)

Natural Resources
Conservation Service

Web Soil Survey
National Cooperative Soil Survey

12/21/2023
Page 2 of 3



Map Unit Legend

Map Unit Symbol Map Unit Name Acres in AOI Percent of AOI

2100 Boel fine sandy loam, 
occasionally flooded

19.1 2.7%

2544 Coly, Uly and Hobbs soils, 3 to 
30 percent slopes

0.7 0.1%

4220 Bolent fine sandy loam, 
occasionally flooded

12.4 1.7%

4672 Loup loam, 0 to 3 percent 
slopes

36.0 5.1%

4822 Valentine loamy fine sand, 3 to 
17 percent slopes

571.9 80.3%

6716 Thurman-Valentine loamy fine 
sands, 0 to 2 percent slopes

30.9 4.3%

6717 Thurman-Valentine loamy fine 
sands, 2 to 6 percent slopes

20.1 2.8%

9064 Kenesaw silt loam, 1 to 3 
percent slopes

8.4 1.2%

9999 Water 12.6 1.8%

Totals for Area of Interest 712.1 100.0%

Soil Map—Buffalo County, Nebraska Hongsermeier

Natural Resources
Conservation Service

Web Soil Survey
National Cooperative Soil Survey

12/21/2023
Page 3 of 3



Pool Ranch Subdivision



1S

Existing Conditions

2S

Proposed Conditions

Routing Diagram for HydroCad
Prepared by {enter your company name here},  Printed 10/18/2024
HydroCAD® 10.00-19  s/n 09701  © 2016 HydroCAD Software Solutions LLC

Subcat Reach Pond Link



HydroCad
  Printed  10/18/2024Prepared by {enter your company name here}

Page 2HydroCAD® 10.00-19  s/n 09701  © 2016 HydroCAD Software Solutions LLC

Area Listing (all nodes)

Area

(acres)

CN Description

(subcatchment-numbers)

13.700 39 >75% Grass cover, Good, HSG A  (2S)

1.510 76 Gravel roads, HSG A  (2S)

128.380 49 Pasture/grassland/range, Fair, HSG A  (1S, 2S)

2.930 98 Unconnected roofs, HSG A  (2S)

146.520 49 TOTAL AREA



HydroCad
  Printed  10/18/2024Prepared by {enter your company name here}

Page 3HydroCAD® 10.00-19  s/n 09701  © 2016 HydroCAD Software Solutions LLC

Soil Listing (all nodes)

Area

(acres)

Soil

Group

Subcatchment

Numbers

146.520 HSG A 1S, 2S

0.000 HSG B

0.000 HSG C

0.000 HSG D

0.000 Other

146.520 TOTAL AREA



HydroCad
  Printed  10/18/2024Prepared by {enter your company name here}

Page 4HydroCAD® 10.00-19  s/n 09701  © 2016 HydroCAD Software Solutions LLC

Ground Covers (all nodes)

HSG-A

(acres)

HSG-B

(acres)

HSG-C

(acres)

HSG-D

(acres)

Other

(acres)

Total

(acres)

Ground

Cover

Subcatchment

Numbers

13.700 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 13.700 >75% Grass cover, Good 2S

1.510 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 1.510 Gravel roads 2S

128.380 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 128.380 Pasture/grassland/range, Fair 1S, 

2S

2.930 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 2.930 Unconnected roofs 2S

146.520 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 146.520 TOTAL AREA



Type II 24-hr  5-Year Rainfall=3.40"HydroCad
  Printed  10/18/2024Prepared by {enter your company name here}

Page 5HydroCAD® 10.00-19  s/n 09701  © 2016 HydroCAD Software Solutions LLC

Time span=1.00-36.00 hrs, dt=0.05 hrs, 701 points
Runoff by SCS TR-20 method, UH=SCS, Weighted-CN

Reach routing by Stor-Ind+Trans method  -  Pond routing by Stor-Ind method

Runoff Area=73.260 ac   0.00% Impervious   Runoff Depth=0.15"Subcatchment 1S: Existing Conditions
   Tc=12.9 min   CN=49   Runoff=2.06 cfs  0.905 af

Runoff Area=73.260 ac   4.00% Impervious   Runoff Depth=0.15"Subcatchment 2S: Proposed Conditions
   Tc=12.9 min   UI Adjusted CN=49   Runoff=2.06 cfs  0.905 af

Total Runoff Area = 146.520 ac   Runoff Volume = 1.810 af   Average Runoff Depth = 0.15"
98.00% Pervious = 143.590 ac     2.00% Impervious = 2.930 ac



Type II 24-hr  5-Year Rainfall=3.40"HydroCad
  Printed  10/18/2024Prepared by {enter your company name here}

Page 6HydroCAD® 10.00-19  s/n 09701  © 2016 HydroCAD Software Solutions LLC

Summary for Subcatchment 1S: Existing Conditions

Runoff = 2.06 cfs @ 12.43 hrs,  Volume= 0.905 af,  Depth= 0.15"

Runoff by SCS TR-20 method, UH=SCS, Weighted-CN, Time Span= 1.00-36.00 hrs, dt= 0.05 hrs
Type II 24-hr  5-Year Rainfall=3.40"

Area (ac) CN Description

73.260 49 Pasture/grassland/range, Fair, HSG A

73.260 100.00% Pervious Area

Tc Length Slope Velocity Capacity Description
(min) (feet) (ft/ft) (ft/sec) (cfs)

12.9 Direct Entry, NDOT Nomograph Method

Subcatchment 1S: Existing Conditions

Runoff

Hydrograph

Time  (hours)
363534333231302928272625242322212019181716151413121110987654321

F
lo

w
  

(c
fs

)

2

1

0

Type II 24-hr

5-Year Rainfall=3.40"

Runoff Area=73.260 ac

Runoff Volume=0.905 af

Runoff Depth=0.15"

Tc=12.9 min

CN=49

2.06 cfs



Type II 24-hr  5-Year Rainfall=3.40"HydroCad
  Printed  10/18/2024Prepared by {enter your company name here}

Page 7HydroCAD® 10.00-19  s/n 09701  © 2016 HydroCAD Software Solutions LLC

Summary for Subcatchment 2S: Proposed Conditions

Runoff = 2.06 cfs @ 12.43 hrs,  Volume= 0.905 af,  Depth= 0.15"

Runoff by SCS TR-20 method, UH=SCS, Weighted-CN, Time Span= 1.00-36.00 hrs, dt= 0.05 hrs
Type II 24-hr  5-Year Rainfall=3.40"

Area (ac) CN Adj Description

2.930 98 Unconnected roofs, HSG A
13.700 39 >75% Grass cover, Good, HSG A
55.120 49 Pasture/grassland/range, Fair, HSG A
1.510 76 Gravel roads, HSG A

73.260 50 49 Weighted Average, UI Adjusted
70.330 96.00% Pervious Area
2.930 4.00% Impervious Area
2.930 100.00% Unconnected

Tc Length Slope Velocity Capacity Description
(min) (feet) (ft/ft) (ft/sec) (cfs)

12.9 Direct Entry, NDOT Nomograph Method

Subcatchment 2S: Proposed Conditions

Runoff

Hydrograph

Time  (hours)
363534333231302928272625242322212019181716151413121110987654321

F
lo

w
  

(c
fs

)

2

1

0

Type II 24-hr

5-Year Rainfall=3.40"

Runoff Area=73.260 ac

Runoff Volume=0.905 af

Runoff Depth=0.15"

Tc=12.9 min

UI Adjusted CN=49

2.06 cfs



Type II 24-hr  10-Year Rainfall=3.95"HydroCad
  Printed  10/18/2024Prepared by {enter your company name here}

Page 8HydroCAD® 10.00-19  s/n 09701  © 2016 HydroCAD Software Solutions LLC

Time span=1.00-36.00 hrs, dt=0.05 hrs, 701 points
Runoff by SCS TR-20 method, UH=SCS, Weighted-CN

Reach routing by Stor-Ind+Trans method  -  Pond routing by Stor-Ind method

Runoff Area=73.260 ac   0.00% Impervious   Runoff Depth=0.28"Subcatchment 1S: Existing Conditions
   Tc=12.9 min   CN=49   Runoff=10.15 cfs  1.736 af

Runoff Area=73.260 ac   4.00% Impervious   Runoff Depth=0.28"Subcatchment 2S: Proposed Conditions
   Tc=12.9 min   UI Adjusted CN=49   Runoff=10.15 cfs  1.736 af

Total Runoff Area = 146.520 ac   Runoff Volume = 3.472 af   Average Runoff Depth = 0.28"
98.00% Pervious = 143.590 ac     2.00% Impervious = 2.930 ac



Type II 24-hr  10-Year Rainfall=3.95"HydroCad
  Printed  10/18/2024Prepared by {enter your company name here}

Page 9HydroCAD® 10.00-19  s/n 09701  © 2016 HydroCAD Software Solutions LLC

Summary for Subcatchment 1S: Existing Conditions

Runoff = 10.15 cfs @ 12.12 hrs,  Volume= 1.736 af,  Depth= 0.28"

Runoff by SCS TR-20 method, UH=SCS, Weighted-CN, Time Span= 1.00-36.00 hrs, dt= 0.05 hrs
Type II 24-hr  10-Year Rainfall=3.95"

Area (ac) CN Description

73.260 49 Pasture/grassland/range, Fair, HSG A

73.260 100.00% Pervious Area

Tc Length Slope Velocity Capacity Description
(min) (feet) (ft/ft) (ft/sec) (cfs)

12.9 Direct Entry, NDOT Nomograph Method

Subcatchment 1S: Existing Conditions

Runoff

Hydrograph

Time  (hours)
363534333231302928272625242322212019181716151413121110987654321

F
lo

w
  

(c
fs

)

11

10

9

8

7

6

5

4

3

2

1

0

Type II 24-hr

10-Year Rainfall=3.95"

Runoff Area=73.260 ac

Runoff Volume=1.736 af

Runoff Depth=0.28"

Tc=12.9 min

CN=49

10.15 cfs



Type II 24-hr  10-Year Rainfall=3.95"HydroCad
  Printed  10/18/2024Prepared by {enter your company name here}

Page 10HydroCAD® 10.00-19  s/n 09701  © 2016 HydroCAD Software Solutions LLC

Summary for Subcatchment 2S: Proposed Conditions

Runoff = 10.15 cfs @ 12.12 hrs,  Volume= 1.736 af,  Depth= 0.28"

Runoff by SCS TR-20 method, UH=SCS, Weighted-CN, Time Span= 1.00-36.00 hrs, dt= 0.05 hrs
Type II 24-hr  10-Year Rainfall=3.95"

Area (ac) CN Adj Description

2.930 98 Unconnected roofs, HSG A
13.700 39 >75% Grass cover, Good, HSG A
55.120 49 Pasture/grassland/range, Fair, HSG A
1.510 76 Gravel roads, HSG A

73.260 50 49 Weighted Average, UI Adjusted
70.330 96.00% Pervious Area
2.930 4.00% Impervious Area
2.930 100.00% Unconnected

Tc Length Slope Velocity Capacity Description
(min) (feet) (ft/ft) (ft/sec) (cfs)

12.9 Direct Entry, NDOT Nomograph Method

Subcatchment 2S: Proposed Conditions

Runoff

Hydrograph

Time  (hours)
363534333231302928272625242322212019181716151413121110987654321

F
lo

w
  

(c
fs

)

11

10

9

8

7

6

5

4

3

2

1

0

Type II 24-hr

10-Year Rainfall=3.95"

Runoff Area=73.260 ac

Runoff Volume=1.736 af

Runoff Depth=0.28"

Tc=12.9 min

UI Adjusted CN=49

10.15 cfs


















	Zoning Packet 12-23-2024  -pg 1-49
	12.23.2024 BoC Zoning Packet part 1
	12.23.2024 BoC Zoning Packet
	-------Revised PreliminaryPlat.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	PRELIMINARY PLAT




	Zoning Packet 12-23-2024 -pg 50-65
	Zoning Packet 12-23-2024 50
	Zoning Packet 12-23-2024 51
	Zoning Packet 12-23-2024 52
	Zoning Packet 12-23-2024 53
	Zoning Packet 12-23-2024 54
	Zoning Packet 12-23-2024 55
	Zoning Packet 12-23-2024 56
	Zoning Packet 12-23-2024 57
	Zoning Packet 12-23-2024 58
	Zoning Packet 12-23-2024 59
	Zoning Packet 12-23-2024 60
	Zoning Packet 12-23-2024 61
	Zoning Packet 12-23-2024 62
	Zoning Packet 12-23-2024 63
	Zoning Packet 12-23-2024 64
	Zoning Packet 12-23-2024 65




